
SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND LGES 
MEETING

4.00 pm MONDAY, 8TH APRIL, 2019
COUNCIL CHAMBER

A Pre-Meeting will take place in Conference Room 1 at 3.30 pm.  
This meeting is for Committee Members only 

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and 
using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to 

the possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.  

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can 
be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Afon Taf Headteacher Presentation 

4. Cyfarthfa Headteacher Presentation 

5. Update on Additional Learning Needs Services 
(ALN) to incorporate PRU's, LRB's 

3 - 8

6. Greenfield School Outreach Service Update 9 - 26

7. Work Programme 2018-19 27 - 38

8. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions 

9. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair

10. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillors:  H R Jones (Chair)
                     L Davies (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: B Carter, D Chaplin and S Jago

Co-optees: C Brown, R Lazell, K Phelan, M Symonds, 
A Rees, A Roberts, K Jones and K Sutton

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT
Date Written 21st March 2019
Report Author Sarah Bowen /Sue Walker
Service Area Learning
Committee Date 8th April 2019

To:   Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

UPDATE ON ADDITIONAL LEARNING NEEDS 
SERVICES (ALN) TO INCORPORATE PRU’S, LRBS 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report provides members with information regarding:-

 the re-alignment of Learning Resources Bases from September 2019 – to date;
 the current impact of those changes; and
 the different support for schools from the Access and Inclusion service in the 

Local Authority (LA).

2.0 RECOMMENDATION

2.1 The report is discussed and noted.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 For a number of years the local authority has placed learners with identified need in 
local authority bases hosted by schools across the County Borough.

3.2 These bases are funded by the local authority with schools having additional monies 
placed into their budget to manage these classes.

3.3 The current process for placing learners in these classes is robust but concern had 
been raised that not all learners were being appropriately placed and the budget for 
1:1 support was heavily relied upon to support learners who were unable to be 
supported in a smaller class.

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



4.0 WHERE WE WERE 

4.1 A review undertaken in the Spring Term 2018 identified gaps in provision.  At March 
2018, across all primary LRBs, there were 36 pupils with Autistic Spectrum Disorder 
(ASD) as their primary need, with only places for 24 pupils, and 8 pupils with Social, 
Emotional and Behavioural Difficulties (SEBD) as their primary need.  A considerable 
number of pupils with SEBD were being supported in mainstream through the 
Enhanced Provision route. A Key Stage 2 (KS2) LRB provision for SEBD was 
created in September 2018 providing eight places.  A significant number of learners 
within the complex needs classes presented as having behavioural difficulties or 
were identified as having ASDs.

4.2 A separate review of the Educated Other Than At School (EOTAS) provision found 
that it was not fit for purpose and needed significant restructuring.

4.3 During the Summer Term 2018, it became apparent that there were increasing 
demands on the Enhanced Provision budget and an urgent review was needed.

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW
 

5.1 The LRBs have been re-structured to meet the needs of our pupils, whilst at the 
same time endeavouring to remain within the current budgetary constraints.

5.2 From September 2018 the provision is as follows:-

5.2.1. Foundation Phase
 2 x bases for learners with identified ASDs (8:1:2) (8 pupils:1 Teacher:2 LSAs)
 1 x nurture provision for learners requiring emotional support to access the 

curriculum (8:1:2) – learners will attend this provision for a maximum of three 
terms

 3 x bases for learners with complex needs (8:1:1)

5.2.2.  Key Stage 2
 2 x bases for learners with identified ASDs (8:1:2)
 1 x base for learners with social and communication disorders (8:1:2)
 1 x nurture provision for learners requiring emotional support to access the 

curriculum (8:1:2) – where appropriate, learners will attend this provision for a 
maximum of three terms

 3 x bases for learners with complex needs (10:1:1)
 1 x base for learners with significant SEBD (6:1:2). This is now a registered Pupil 

Referral Unit (PRU).

5.2.3.  Key Stage 3/4 (15:1:2)
 1 x base for learners with identified ASDs
 1 x base for learners with significant with social, emotional and behavioural 

needs (23:3 teachers: 2 tutors: 2 HLTAs: 3 LSA).  This is now a registered PRU.

5.2.4.  The LA also has one primary based class for learners with Hearing Impairment (HI) 
and a similar provision for secondary aged learners with HI.

Page 4



5.3 The Entry and Exit Criteria (available as a Background Paper) for these provisions 
was revised, and operational as from September 2018.  This document was revised 
in order to inform parents and schools as to when it might be appropriate to consider 
a placement in a specialist provision.  It sets out Merthyr Tydfil’s expectations for a 
graduated response which has to be adopted prior to this process.  

In addition to the HI Primary LRB and KS 3/4 provision, learners within mainstream 
who are HI or VI have their needs supported through a peripatetic service.

Following the mapping exercise, provision for HI pupils in mainstream has 
decreased, but the needs of all pupils continue to be met.

 For VI pupils, training has been identified for additional Braille Learning Support 
Assistants.  This has been necessary to meet the growing number of pupils with 
complex visual impairment in MTCBC.

 Grant funding for the renewal and upkeep of Braille equipment is currently being 
confirmed with Welsh Government. . 

The local authority registered a PRU for KS2, 3 and 4 pupils as of September 1st 
2018.  The provision is on two sites – Ty Homfray site for KS3 and 4 and the former
Dowlais Infants site for KS2.  

5.4 As from September 2018 Special Tuition for pupils in KS3 and KS4 is now delivered 
under a Service Level Agreement with Equity Solutions.  This has built capacity 
within the team and allowed for more pupils to be taught.  Where appropriate some 
pupils have been taught in small groups to improve socialisation and communication 
skills.  Pupils in KS2 that require Special Tuition are taught by well-established 
Tutors, employed via an agency.   

5.5 Headteachers and Officers worked together to carry out a fundamental review of 
Enhanced Support Provision, and the recommendations from this review will be 
acted upon as of September 2019.

5.6 The Support Services for schools within the LA are as follows:-

 Educational Psychology Service 
 School Support Service incorporating Outreach Service & Behaviour Support 

Service
 Additional Learning Needs 
 Enhanced Provision, the purpose of which is to provide additional support which 

is beyond what a school might reasonably be expected to be able to provide
 Special Tuition which is part of the Inclusion Service
 PRU

5.7 The Outreach and Behaviour Support Services have been re-structured to ensure a 
more continuous pathway of support.

Page 5



6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE

6.1 The LA’s ambition is that all children have the ‘Best Start to Life’.  In order to reach 
that ambition we need to ensure that all pupils have their needs met and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  This will need to be provided in an appropriate provision, be that in their 
local school or in a specific base within the LA.
 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT

7.1 In order to achieve our ambition and in line with the new ALNET Code the LA will:

 provide appropriate training for staff employed within the LRBs;
 utilise Greenfield Outreach Service to support the measuring of progress of 

learners within the LRBs;
 review the provision required for the increasing number of pupils with complex 

ASD in KS3/4 needs; 
 further develop the Ty Dysgu Dowlais site for the teaching of pupils in receipt of 

Special Tuition; 
 extend the SEBD provision for KS2 to include pupils in Year 2 for transition 

purposes; 
 follow the recommendations of the Enhanced Provision review to ensure  more 

equitable and timely support; 
 review the current provision for HI pupils; 
 continue to work with schools to develop strategies to support all vulnerable 

learners, in particular those with SEBD;
 continue to review the Criteria for Specialist Placements to ensure that it remains 

fit for purpose; and
 continue to develop a robust provision for learners accessing the PRU and 

Special Tuition to ensure that they leave school with appropriate qualifications.

7.2 As part of regional working the LA will be part of a three-year specialist sensory 
workforce training plan funded by Welsh Government – this need was identified as a 
result of further mapping exercises.

7.3 By working closely with schools and LA colleagues, ensure their readiness for the 
ALNET Bill and Code. 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES

8.1 The content of this report relates to the following Wellbeing Objectives:

 Best start to life – children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.

8.2 Improving outcomes for pupils with ALN was an objective within the Best Start 2 
agenda in 2017/18.  The objective was not met, however, these proposals seek to 
address the concerns raised through that project.

Sue Walker
CHIEF OFFICER(LEARNING)

COUNCILLOR Lisa Mytton
PORTFOLIO LEAD FOR LEARNING

Page 6



BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Entry and Exit Criteria Learning Department
Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s Constitution? NO

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect of each 
proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

GREENFIELD SCHOOL OUTREACH SERVICE 
UPDATE

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report outlines the work of the current support being provided to mainstream 
schools by Greenfield Special School.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The content of this report is discussed and noted.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 Greenfield Outreach Service has been supporting schools within the Local Authority 
(LA) of Merthyr Tydfil for over three years.  The Outreach Service comprises of Vicky 
Jefferson (Assistant Head; Greenfield School) and Anna Price (HLTA/Behaviour 
Analyst). 

3.2 The aim of the service is to upskill staff to be able to effectively support pupils with 
Additional Learning Needs (ALN) within their settings.  The nature of the support will 
vary according to the specific needs of the pupils, the staff and the school.  The 
support may incorporate a number of elements including: advice; consultation; 
training; joint planning; modelling of techniques and strategies; assessment and 
individual or small group work with pupils or staff.  

3.2.1 The aim is achieved by:
 Providing accredited training events, built around the needs of individual settings.
 School to school work: planning strategic ways forward, modelling good practice 

and encouraging collaborative work between settings.

Date Written 26th March 2019
Report Author Vicky Jefferson/Sue Walker
Service Area Learning
Committee Date 8th April 2019

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 Sharing good practice from Greenfield: i.e. holding moderation events for teachers 
working in LA Learning Resource Bases (LRBs) and supporting with assessment 
procedures.

 Developing individual plans for pupils where the current situation is resulting in an 
impact on their quality of life in school.  The plans provide the school with specific, 
achievable person-centred outcomes.  The Outreach Service will work closely 
with the school to achieve these outcomes. 

3.3 Priorities

Greenfield Outreach Service works closely with the LA, and specifically the Chief 
Education Officer to map priorities for the year in line with MTCBC’s Business Plan.  
The priorities for this academic year are to:

1. Support the new provisions established within the LA
2. Evaluate the impact of the Positive Behaviour Support (PBS) training and identify 

next steps
3. Evaluate the impact of the Person Centred Practice (PCP) training and identify 

next steps
4. Provide, monitor and evaluate the Training Programme
5. Conduct an ALN Review of Cyfarthfa High School and follow this up with a 

programme of support

4.0 WHERE WE WERE

4.1 Prior to utilising the services at Greenfield Special School the LA had no specific 
outreach support for schools.

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW

5.1 Priority 1:  Support for the new provisions established within the LA

5.1.1 As a measure to ensure the LA has suitable provisions available to meet the needs 
of all learners, new provisions have been established.  These are made up of an 
additional Foundation and Key Stage 2 (KS2) Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) 
class; a newly established Foundation and KS2 Nurture Provision and a newly 
established KS2 Social, Emotional and Behavioural Difficulties (SEBD) provision.

5.1.2 The provisions have all accessed support from the Outreach Service, in terms of 
training, meetings and class observations followed with support and advice.  The 
Outreach Service has supported the Nurture Provisions with visits to similar settings 
and access to relevant courses to further develop knowledge and understanding, 
including the Nurture Network Training.

5.1.3 The Foundation Phase ASD provision, where there is an experienced teacher, has 
settled quickly and easily; while the KS2 provision continues to need some further 
development time, mainly the result of a newly established team of staff.  

5.1.4 The teachers from the Nurture provisions and the KS2 SEBD class found the Nurture 
Network Training to be very beneficial.  The staff have broadened their 
understanding of how to develop the provisions further, by ensuring their provisions 
allow the time to build trusting relationships with adults and peers in order to prepare 
them for the social and intellectual demands of school life.  They are now more 

Page 10



confident in their ability to provide an environment that meets the needs of the 
learners.

5.1.5 The KS2 Nurture Provision has found the mix of pupils remaining from the complex 
needs LRB and the new pupils for the Nurture Provision to be a challenge: the two 
groups have presented different problems and needs, which have been difficult to 
manage within the same setting.  The teacher has used the tools and skills 
developed from the PBS and PCP training to work through ideas and solutions to 
make this work more effectively. 

5.1.6 There have been improvements to all settings since they were originally established 
in the Autumn Term.  Moving forward, Outreach will continue to support with advice 
and guidance as and when is needed.

5.2 Priority 2:  Evaluate impact of the Positive Behaviour Support training and identify 
next steps

5.2.1 Greenfield School and Outreach have been delivering BILD accredited training of 
PBS for over three years now.  The training has been produced in conjunction with 
Jon Hull of Prospect Ltd Training.  The training is made up a four day certified 
Practitioner Course which is aimed at all school staff and a one day certified Safer 
Interactions course which is aimed at members of the Senior Leadership Teams.  
The staff that have attended the courses, have ranged from Learning Support 
Assistants to Headteachers.  Every school in the authority has taken part in this 
training in some way: for some schools this has been for a minority of staff to attend 
the events and the information has then been disseminated throughout the school; 
for other schools a large number have staff have attended the four day events.  
Some schools have chosen to have extra training from Greenfield and Outreach in 
terms of INSET or twilight training for the whole school.

5.2.2 Regular evaluations are collected from each training session, however these 
evaluate the effect the training has had on the indivdual particpant, therefore a 
Quality Assurance Audit was devised by PBS trainers and Jon Hull, which could be 
used to evaluate the impact the training has had on the schools as a whole.  This 
survey was shared with schools and the responses from the schools were collated 
(Appendix 1).  It was hypothesised that the more people that had been trained in a 
setting, the further embedded the PBS approach would be. 

5.2.3 The results found that all schools had disseminated information from the training.  
Hhowever the quality of this feedback and the impact it had on initiating change, was 
very much dependent on the position and role of the participant within their school.  
The survey found that in most cases, the schools where most impact was evident,  
had participants on the four day course, who held leadership roles.  In most cases, 
the schools where most impact was observed, did not have the most number of 
people trained in this approach.  This would suggest that embedding this approach is 
not a direct relation to the number of people trained, but to the position of the 
person/people attending the training, and their capacity, competence and confidence 
at driving and leading the approach. 

Page 11



5.2.4 The audit also highlighted that schools were more confident in their understanding of 
why behaviour occurs and more competent in analysing behavioural data to inform 
practice.  However, schools did not feel that the training could be directly linked to a 
reduction in exclusion rates.  In fact, even in the schools where exclusion rates had 
decreased, schools believed this was more likely to be linked to a change in cohort 
of pupils, as oppose to the change in the understanding of behaviour.  The audit also 
highlighted that few schools were using PBS Plans and were not confident in the use 
of physical interventions.  Some schools did not feel that they required PBS Plans, 
while others thought this was an area for development.  All schools who declared 
they were not confident in the use of physical interventions stated that this was not a 
training issue; but a problem related to the lack of using them.  Schools felt they 
were better at exploring alternative (and preventative strategies) which meant they 
did not need to physically interevene.  However, this lack of practise has resulted in 
staff not feeling confident that they can remember how to intervene correctly if 
needed.  From delivering annual refreshers to all participants, although staff do not 
feel they are able to remember what to do, practice demonstrates this is not the case 
and recall is always good, with 100% of refresher particiapants achieving a pass with 
ease.

5.3 Priority 3:  Evaluate the impact of the Person Centred Practice

5.3.1 In preparation for the ALN Reform, the Outreach Service has been working with 
Helen Sanderson Associates to deliver PCP training across the authority in all 
settings including Early Years and Further Education.   A Working Party was 
established to work alongside the Outreach Service.  The Party consisted of three 
ALN Coordinator`s from mainstream schools: one from a Welsh Medium Primary; 
one from a Roman Catholic Primary and one from a Seconday School.  

5.3.2 Over the last two years, the Working Party have delivered training to all schools on 
PCP; Person Centred Reviews and Person Centred Outcomes.  Nearly all schools 
sent two representatives to the training events where they became Person Centred 
Coaches for their settings.  The coaches were expected to complete two modules of 
eLearning in addition to attending the training events and were provided with a 
training tool to take back to their settings to disseminate the information to the rest of 
their school.

5.3.3 The Person Centred Schools Self-Assessment document was used by schools in the 
authority to evaluate the impact of the training within the settings (Appendix 2).  
Alongside this, the Outreach Service has liaised closely with schools to quality 
assure their reflections and self-assessment responses.  The grading system of the 
self-assessment document should be considered in terms of:

1. Not begun to consider this aspect of PCP
2. Beginning to consider this element of PCP
3. The ALNCo has a good understanding of this aspect and plans are in place to 

operate in this way
4. Already operate in a person centred way in this area in some parts of the setting
5. The whole school is operating using person centred practices in this aspect

Page 12



5.3.4 The results show that most schools have graded themselves around 2`s and 3`s, 
which suggests that most settings are beginning to consider elements of PCP with 
some settings already establishing good groundings and plans on which to build.  
The schools that were most confident with their practice included the schools where 
the coach was one of the Working Party and also included some of the schools who 
were most confident and competent with PBS approaches.  The Afon Taf Cluster 
schools and the Welsh Medium Schools graded themselves lower than the other 
schools overall.  This is likely to be a result of access to training.   The Afon Taf 
Cluster was the least well represented throughout the training events and this may 
have impacted in their readiness to move forward with the approach.  The Welsh 
Medium cluster however, only consists of two schools: one of whom is part of the 
working party (reflected in the grades 4 and 5) and one of whom did not attend the 
training (which reduced the overall score).  However, it is worth noting, that since the 
self-assessment documents have been completed, the Welsh Medium Schools from 
Merthyr and RCT have now joined as a cluster and the Merthyr Person Centred 
Trainer has been delivering further training to them and has been working on 
modifying the materials into Welsh.

5.4 Priority 4: Provide, monitor and evaluate the Training Programme

5.4.1 The training programme is a series of events that the Additional Learning Needs 
department contribute to.  In addition to the extensive training events from the 
Positive Behaviour Support programme , the Person Centred Practice events and 
ASD Awareness,  the Outreach Service has also offered the LRB Moderation Project 
to the programme.

5.4.2 Teachers from the LRBs within MTCBC have been working collaboratively over the 
last three years to increase the accuracy, validity and consistency of Teacher 
Assessments for pupils with ALN across the Authority.  This project is being led by 
South Wales Cross Consortium Special School Moderation Network.  The aim of the 
project is to establish a consistent approach to moderating pupils work in order to 
create consistent levelling; to introduce a system; to monitor and verify the 
moderation process and to analyse the impact of the model for effectiveness.  The 
LRB teachers meet once a term, with moderated work which is internally verified.  
Following this, a sample of the work is taken to be externally verified by the South 
Wales Cross Consortium Moderation Network.  The attendance has gone from 50% 
of LRBs attending during the last academic year, to 100% attendance in the Autumn 
Term.  This reduced slightly again in the Spring Term for various reasons, including 
an Estyn inspection and maternity leave.  

5.4.3 The number of work passing internal moderation has increased this term to 65% of 
work receiving a pass, which has been a significant increase from 11% in the 
Autumn Term (see Appendix 3).  The quality of work that has been submitted 
internally is also improving.   The external verification figures were at 100% pass rate 
last academic year and have remained at 100% pass rate again this year.   This 
suggests that the quality assurance procedure is effective and reliable.

Page 13



5.5 Priority 5:  Conduct an ALN Review of Cyfarthfa High School and follow this up with 
a programme of support

5.5.1 In May 2019, the Outreach Service was requested to join a team to carry out an 
ALN/Behaviour Review of Cyfarthfa High School.  It was the aim of the Head 
Teacher to look at improving systems for behaviour and ALN at the school.  The 
Review involved reflecting on varying aspects of practice and procedures throughout 
the setting by: meeting with the Leadership Team, Heads of Departments and the 
Student Support Centre; interviewing pupils; viewing documentation and undertaking 
a tour of the school.

5.5.2 From the behaviour aspect of the Review, the findings included a need to:
 consider the vision, values and beliefs of all stakeholders throughout the school;
 reflect on the current behaviour policy;
 improve communication strategies across the school;
 develop a clear and consistent graduated response which takes the emphasis of 

Senior Leaders crisis managing pupils; and
 consider the use of the environment and organisation of the day to reduce 

incidents during high congestion times.

5.5.3 Following the Review, the Outreach Service allocated ten days of support to work 
with the school to meet the recommendations.  The support has consisted of time 
spent with various members of staff to problem solve and plan a way forward.  The 
staff involved began initially with the Headteacher and the Assistant Heads, who lead 
the Pastoral Team.  The main priorities, alongside those from the Review, were 
identified and steps were taken to begin addressing the vision and values of the 
school.  It quickly became apparent that to make a significant difference and to 
instigate change across the whole school, more people were needed and specifically 
those outside of a pastoral or leadership role.  By approaching behaviour in this way, 
the school were to make behaviour `everybody`s business`.  The school set up a 
Behaviour Team, which consisted of ten people with various roles and 
responsibilities, including the Head, Assistant Heads, Head of Department, Heads of 
Year, Teachers and a Higher Level Teaching Assistant.  The Behaviour Team spent 
time working with their colleagues, and pupils, to develop an understanding of 
everyone`s perceptions and opinions before going on to construct the collective view 
and a way forward. 

5.5.4 To date the school have:

 remodelled the Behaviour Policy, with an emphasis on PBS and reinforcing 
appropriate behaviours, whilst also addressing the systems for inappropriate 
behaviours;

 designed signage and displays to promote the visions and values of the school;
 developed a graduated response, which places accountability of behaviour on all 

stakeholders at all levels, and which also incorporates a problem solving 
approach to managing challenging behaviours, including the use of PCP tools;

 planned and disseminated training events to all staff and information sessions to 
all pupils;

 considered ways of improving communication systems through the use of more 
effective `face to face` meetings and electronic systems as required; and

 developed documents to share with external agencies and visitors to promote 
consistency of approaches to behaviours and to lay out expectations to all 
involved.

Page 14



6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE

6.1 A key component of the National Mission for Education from Welsh Government is 
the development of schools as Learning Organisations, learning from both within 
their own sector and beyond.  

6.2 The use of the expertise within Greenfield Special School enables schools within the 
County Borough to learn and develop their own skills to support some of our most 
vulnerable learners.  

6.3 Our ultimate aim is that schools are able to identify and source the best practice 
needed to meet the specific needs of their community, truly becoming schools as 
Learning Organisations within a self-improving schools system.

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT

7.1 Positive Behaviour Support Training

It is important to continue to build schools confidence and competence, allowing 
schools the choice to either send more staff on the four day course or to continue to 
train key leaders in the school to drive the approach throughout.  The Outreach 
Service is able to continue to support schools with INSET and twilight courses where 
needed.  It would also be highly beneficial to build capacity across the Authority by 
training a Behaviour Lead in each cluster as a Positive Behaviour Support trainer

7.2 Person Centred Practice

There are plans in the next financial year to continue to drive the Person Centred 
Training across the Authority.  Through the quality assurance assessments, it has 
become evident that many schools have not felt confident enough to deliver and 
drive the approach throughout the school and that they would prefer more staff to 
access the training delivered by the Working Party.  Therefore, the training 
programme will incorporate this need throughout the year.  The LA will explore the 
opportunities to gain further funding from the Transformation Grant to continue this 
work.

7.3 Training Programme

There is still some progress to be made.  Some participants have already contacted 
the Outreach Service to request extra support for the Summer Term Moderation 
event.  It has also been reported that the workload on participants is an issue, as 
schools are requesting that LRBs submit for this moderation event while also 
submitting for their cluster mainstream moderation.  It has been suggested that LRBs 
would only need to submit work for the LRB project, but this discussion needs to be 
taken forward with the Headteachers. 

Page 15



7.4 ALN Review of Cyfarthfa High School

The developments from the Autumn and Spring Term will continue into the Summer 
Term.  Creating change takes time and is very challenging: it has been refreshing to 
observe the enthusiasm, energy and determination of the behaviour team to make a 
difference within their school.  All the recommendations have been taken on board 
and developments are under way for each one: these will now take time to embed 
and flourish.

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES

8.1 The contents of this report relate to the following Wellbeing Objectives:

 Best start to life – children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.

SUE WALKER
CHIEF OFFICER, LEARNING

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON
PORTFOLIO LEAD 

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

Page 16



Appendix 1

Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



                                                                                                                          Appendix 2

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

1a. Learning Outcomes

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

2a. Using person-centred practices to 
personalise learning

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%

2b. Seeing the learner as an individual and 
celebrating what we like and admire about 

them

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

2C. How we know what's important to a 
learner now

1 2 3 4 5
0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%

2d. How we know what a learner’s 
aspirations are for the future

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

2e. How we understand how a learner 
wants to be supported

Page 20



1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

2f. How we act on what’s working and not 
working for a learner

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

2g. How we enable learners to 
communicate

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%

2h. How we identify the way a learner 
makes decisions

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

2i. How we support learners in their social 
and emotional development to be an 

independent person

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

3a. Skills, knowledge and understanding of 
the senior leadership team

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

3b. Skills, knowledge and understanding of 
the staff in using person-centred practices

Page 21



1 2 3 4 5
0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%
45%
50%

3c. Professional learning

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

3d. Evaluate professional development 
plans and staff performance management

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

3e. How we involve staff in planning and 
decision making

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

3f. Staff know what is important to each 
other and how best to support each other

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

3g. How we involve learners in decision 
making about the establishment

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

3h. How we are involving governors in 
person-centred practice

Page 22



1 2 3 4 5
0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%
45%

3i. Working with other agencies that 
support children and young people

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

3j. Our role in sharing good practice 
(school, cross-sector and authority)

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

3k. How we provide good information and 
support to families

1 2 3 4 5
0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%

3l. How families’ aspirations are 
encouraged and supported

1 2 3 4 5
0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%
45%

3m. How we support families to contribute 
their knowledge and expertise

Page 23



1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Afon Taf Cluster
Developing as a Person Centred Organisation

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Cyfarthfa Cluster
Developing as a Person Centred Organisation

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

Pen Y Dre Cluster
Developing as a Person Centred Organisation

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Bishop Hedley Cluster
Developing as a Person Centred Organisation

1 2 3 4 5
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

Welsh Cluster
Developing as a Person Centred Organisation

Page 24



Appendix 3

LRB Moderation Project 2017-2018

LRB Moderation Project 2018-2019

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Work Programme 2018/19 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting.

1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 
of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The Committee considers the attached draft work programme and approves, revises 
or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.2 in planning 
for the next meeting.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND
3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 

by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme.

3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 
their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda. 

3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 
Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this.

Date Written 25th March 2019
Report Author Scrutiny Section
Committee Division Scrutiny 
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 8th April 2019

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 
help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:-

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals. The key outcomes (or components) for Best Start to Life are:

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment 
 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education 
 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people 
 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure that establishes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination. The key outcomes (or components) to support the 
response to this objective include: 

 Making skills work for Merthyr Tydfil: developing the workforce of the future; 
 Developing the environment and infrastructure for business to flourish; 
 Communities protect, enhance and promote our heritage and cultural assets; 
 Developing safer communities; and 
 Supporting and accommodating those most disadvantaged in the housing market.

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside. The key outcomes (or components) for communities to 
protect, enhance and promote our environment and countryside include: 

 Minimise environmental damage through prevention of pollution; 
 Maximise efficient use of materials and resources by means of the waste 

hierarchy; 
 Developing good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure and open 

spaces; and 
 Promoting and supporting the use of renewable and low carbon energy.

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. To 
ensure a holistic approach is met in this objective, the key outcomes (or 
components) for Living Well will include: 

 Safeguarding children and adults who are at risk of harm; 
 Tackling adverse childhood experiences and developing community Resilience; 
 Promoting healthy behaviours and increased levels of physical activity; 
 Promote good emotional wellbeing and improved mental health; 
 Clear and accessible information and advice; and 
 Services that provide people with the ability to live in their own home

3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 

Page 28



matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent.

3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 
the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act.

3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 
the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions.

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme?
a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 

objectives and priorities?
b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns?
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest?
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications?
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes?
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources?

Q) What is the specific role of the Committee?
           This will depend on the item – for example the role could be:

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department;

b. to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose;
c. to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue;
d. to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation / review;
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue.

Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item?

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council 

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes.
c. To receive an overview presentation.
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy

Page 29



e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 
pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work. 

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy.

g. Improvement in service delivery

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome? 
What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions.

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information?
Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations?
The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
Member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting. 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend?
Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc.

Q) Method of Scrutiny?
Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to:

a. Consider an item at a single meeting;
b. Consider an item over a series of meetings;
c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 

to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice);

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days);
e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee;
f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views;

Page 30



g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 
calls for evidence).

Performance and Scrutiny Department
MTCBC

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future:
Wellbeing in our 
Community

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website

Full Council 4th April 2018 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Page 31

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 

APPENDIX I

Page 32



Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements.

Date / Timing Overarching Item Linked to MTCBC’s 
Wellbeing Objectives 

(Corporate Objectives)?

Officer & Cabinet Member  (Other)
Scrutiny Focus 

Changes in the ESTYN 
Inspection Reporting 
Framework for schools

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker / 
Joe Colsey

Scrutiny and Challenge: - to receive details of 
Changes in the ESTYN Self Evaluation Reporting (SER) 
Framework.

FIRST DRAFT Scrutiny Report - 
Review of Attendance & 
Attainment in Primary & 
Secondary Schools

BS Best Start to Life  Task & Finish Group. Cllr H 
Jones, Cllr C Davies, and Cllr S 
Jago

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Task and Finish Group 
has prepared its report for consideration by the full 
Committee. Once agreed it will be progressed to 
Cabinet for consideration

Draft Annual Work 
Programme 2018/19

n/a Task & Finish Group. Cllr H 
Jones, Cllr C Davies, and Mrs R 
Lazell

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To consider the draft 
Annual Work programme for 2018/19 as prepared by 
the Task and Finish group of Cllr H Jones, Cllr C. 
Davies, and Mrs R Lazell.

4th June 2018

Heolgerrig Community School 
and Trelewis Primary School.

BS Best Start to Life  Head teachers of Heolgerrig 
Community School and 
Trelewis Primary School.

Scrutiny and Challenge:- The Head teachers of these 
schools will be attending the meeting to share good 
practice in their respective schools.

Public Services Board and its 
role in Education

BS Best Start to Life  Lesley Lawson RCT 
Partnerships team / Sue 
Walker

Scrutiny and Challenge: - Focus on Wellbeing and 
how this has an impact /have an effect on Schools. 
How this delivers educational outcomes.

16th July 2018 Learning Resource Bases 
(LRB’s) and  Educated Other 
Than At School (EOTAS) 
Update 

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- To further discuss and 
consider any changes to the provision and re-
alignment of  Learning Resources Bases in the County 
Borough; and  of EOTAS provision.

P
age 33



Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements.

Overview of the Progress 
of Youth Support Services 
since the Estyn Monitoring 
Visit 2015

BS Best Start to Life Cllr Lisa Mytton/Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:  For information only

Data Report – Foundation 
Phase, KS1, KS2 and KS3 (to 
also include a verbal update 
on KS4 results, which are only 
being made available on 23rd 
August)
 

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- to receive a report  on the 
attainment in Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and Key 
Stage 3 in 2018. 

School budgets and Overview 
of Building Stock (school 
buildings and estates) and 
future plans

BS Best Start to Life  Anthony Lewis / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- A report providing details of   
School budgets and an overview of building Stock 
(school buildings and estates) and future plans.3rd September 

2018

Welsh in Education Strategic 
Plan (WESP) – Future Plans

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny & Challenge:- Local authorities are under a 
duty to prepare a plan explaining how it will improve 
the planning of Welsh-medium education, and 
improve standards, together with its targets for 
improvement and progress reports. To debate and 
challenge.

Value for money report on 
education services

BS Best Start to Life  Steve Jones/Anthony Lewis Scrutiny & Challenge:- A focus on value for money in 
Education Services. The Chief Finance Officer to 
attend the meeting together with the  Head of 
School Planning & Improvement

The Additional Learning 
Needs and Education Tribunal 
(Wales) Act.

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker  
/Liz Jones (CSC)/ Sarah Bowen

Scrutiny & Challenge:   Discussion on the regional 
and local plan to support and prepare our schools for 
the implementation of the Transformation Bill.

15th October 
2018

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) Framework 

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer 

P
age 34



Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements.

(Inspection Area 2) on a specific Local Government Education Services 
Inspection Framework element.

Update on Nursery 
Sufficiency and 30 Hour 
Childcare

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:-  Local authorities are 
required to undertake Childcare Sufficiency 
Assessments (CSAs) under Section 26 of the 2006 
Childcare Act on the understanding that local 
authorities are best placed to understand and 
respond to local needs. To receive progress report on 
Nursery Sufficiency and 30 Hour Childcare.

NEETS Strategy 2018 -2021

(moved to the 4th of March 
meeting 

BS Best Start to Life  Chris Hole /  Cllr Lisa Mytton / 
Sue Walker

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To Inform the Scrutiny 
Committee of the Not in Education, Employment or 
Training Strategy (2018-21) and the progress that has 
been made against this agenda in line with the 
previous strategy.  The NEETS Strategy identifies 
some critical areas to be progressed if the authority 
is to continue its progress. 

26th 
November 
2018

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) Framework 
(Inspection Area 3)

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- The Scrutiny Committee will 
receive a report from the Chief Education Officer on 
a specific Local Government Education Services 
Inspection Framework element.

14th January 
2019

Report on the performance 
outcomes across all education 
services  which looks at:

 All key stages 
including ks4 (SER Q1)

 Attendance and 
exclusions

 School categorisation 

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue 
Walker/Sarah Bowen/Joe 
Colsey/ CSC

Scrutiny and Challenge: The scrutiny committee will 
receive a report from the Chief Education Officer on 
all aspects of performance and outcomes from across 
education services, including the latest school 
categorisations from Central South Consortium

P
age 35



Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements.

Impact of support to red and 
amber schools over the last 
two academic years (2016-17 
and 2017-2018)

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue 
Walker/Joe Colsey/Schools

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from CSC on the impact of 
support provided to schools to improve standards

NEETs strategy 2018-2021 Best Start to Life Chris Hole /  Cllr Lisa Mytton / 
Sue Walker

Scrutiny and Challenge: To inform Scrutiny 
Committee of the Not in Education, Employment or 
Training Strategy (2018-21) and the progress that has 
been made against this agenda in line with the 
previous strategy. The NEETs Strategy identifies 
some critical areas to be progressed if the authority 
is to continue its progress

4th March 
2019

Home to school transport Best Start to Life Sue Walker/Cllr Lisa Mytton Scrutiny and Challenge:  To scrutinise the findings of 
the 12 week public consultation 

8th April 2019

Head teacher presentation Best Start to Life Head teachers from Cyfartha 
and Avon Taf

Scrutiny and Challenge:
Wellbeing- what are schools doing to improve 
pupil wellbeing and what has been the impact

School improvement- what are the schools doing 
to drive improvement in standards and the 
impact of this.

Assessment- what is the methodology of 
assessment and how robust is it in predicting 
outcomes

P
age 36



Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements.

Update on Additional 
Learning Needs Services (ALN) 
to incorporate PIU’s, LRB’s. 

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- This meeting will have an  
(Additional Learning Needs) ALN focus.

Greenfield School Outreach 
service update

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker / 
Greenfield School

Scrutiny and Challenge:- During the visit to the 
school in December 2017, the school raised a 
number of points which the scrutiny committee took 
forward on the schools behalf and these were 
responded to by the Chief Education Officer. The 
Chair and Vice Chair have agreed that the school will 
be invited to attend a meeting once the new work 
programme is prepared after the AGM in May 2018. 
Areas of concern were - Continuity of Funding. 
Current number of INSET days per year is insufficient. 
Eligibility / criteria for admission to Greenfield. 
Future accommodation needs of Greenfield to be 
considered as well. To also receive details of the 
Outreach Service.

Additional items to consider for Work

Date to be 
confirmed

To invite / visit Heads and Chairs of Governance at the following schools :-
 Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Santes Tudful
 Pen-y-dre High School
 Ynysowen Community Primary School
 Visit Educated Other Than at School (EOTAS) to see what provision is available (before 8th April).
 Visit LRB’s (Learning Resource Basis) as part of the programme of visits.

Date to be 
confirmed

P
age 37



Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements.

Date to be 
confirmed

Date to be 
confirmed

P
age 38


	Agenda
	5 Update on Additional Learning Needs Services (ALN) to incorporate PRU's, LRB's
	6 Greenfield School Outreach Service Update
	7 Work Programme 2018-19
	Appendix 2


